
LPC Warehouse RFP Addendum 1 
RFP issue date: May 29, 2012 

Addendum 1 issue date: July 6, 2012 
 
Contents of the Addendum 
 

A. Questions and Answers – Enclosed is a summary of questions and answers discussed 
at the pre-submission conference that took place on June 20, 2012.  Also included are 
questions and answers that have been sent to the LPC Warehouse email address. 

 
B. Contact Information – Contact Information is provided for those individuals who 

attended the pre-submission conference and indicated that they are willing to share their 
contact information. 

 
C. Environmental Documents – Enclosed are environmental documents from the 

Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) that tested the quantity of lead in the air and 
in the dust. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



A. Questions and Answers 
 
Questions received at the 6/20/12 pre-submission conference and others received by email 
(through July 5) are included below.   
 
 
Site Visit 
 
Q: Can we arrange access to the Warehouse? 
A: Yes, you may access the LPC Warehouse on Thursday, July 12th between 10:00 am to 12:00 
pm.  On the day of the site visit, you will need to sign a release form before entering the building.  
Please be advised that this will be the only occasion when building access will be permitted 
during the RFP application period.  If you would like to attend the site visit, please RSVP to 
lpcwarehouserfp@hpd.nyc.gov.   
 
 
Pre-Submission Conference 
 
Q: Is the Pre-Submission Conference mandatory?  If people did not attend the conference, 
are they disqualified?   
A: No, the Pre-Submission Conference is optional and groups are not disqualified based on 
whether or not they attended the Conference. 
 
 
Timeline/Approvals 
 
Q: What is the anticipated timeline for the decision?  Who will announce the decision? 
A: HPD expects to designate in the winter.  However, designation is contingent upon the number 
of submissions and the time it will take to review the proposals. If there is HDC funding proposed, 
both HPD and HDC will review the proposals and will make a joint decision. 
  
Q: What is the time frame for project completion?   
A: The entire selection and ULURP process could take approximately a year and a half before the 
commencement of construction.  After the designation, we will go through the environmental 
review process, along with other internal approvals before the start of the ULURP process, 
estimated to occur next summer. Project closing will be facilitated after ULURP approval.   
 
Q: Is the ULURP process done?   
A: No, the ULURP process has not been completed.   
 
Q: What are the assumptions for ULURP timing?   
A: We are estimating approximately 5-7 months for ULURP.  This is the time for the formal 
ULURP public review as the time needed to reach the point of starting the ULURP process is not 
governed by time restrictions.  This is unlike the public review period, which has specific 
timeframe requirements.  
 
Q: Do we need to get approval by the Design Commission? 
A: No, approval by the Design Commission is not required for this development.   
 
 
Land Assemblage  
 
Q: If there is adjacent private property available, can we have a land assemblage?   
A: You may propose the development of an assemblage, but only in an instance where the 
development entity (or one of the entities in the case of a joint venture) is the owner of the 



adjacent private property or has an executed contract of sale for such property.  Evidence of site 
control as described previously must be included in the response to the RFP. 
 
 
Development Team and Experience 
 
Q: Can you clarify the definition of a Local Development Partner?  What if a partner is 
located in an adjacent Community District?  What role does the Local Development 
Partner have? 
A: An organization does not qualify as the Local Development Partner if the group is located in an 
adjacent Community District.  At least one Principal of the Applicant must be a Local 
Development Partner.  A Local Development Partner is defined as a locally-based development 
company having an office located in Brooklyn Community District 1 for at least seven (7) years 
and having a history of improving the quality of life for the community via tangible social services 
and/or financial investments.  Providing social services does qualify one as a Local Development 
Partner.  The Local Development Partner needs to be reflected in the Ownership structure. 
 
Q: What if the local group doesn’t provide housing – is that ok?  
A: Yes, that is ok.  The Development Team may be a joint-venture partnership. 
 
 
RFP Forms 
 
Q: Will we need to include Appendix C (Enterprise Green Communities Checklist) in the 
RFP Submission? 
A: No, you do not need to include Appendix C in the RFP Submission.  It is a Checklist that is in 
the RFP as a reference.  To satisfy the Green Communities Criteria, you need to submit Form K, 
which is in the Green Communities Intended Methods Workbook. 
 
Q: With respect to the Rental Pro Forma’s Units and Income Tab, can we use 2012 HUD 
Income Limits, FMR Rent, Electricity and Gas Allowance instead of 2008? 
A: Yes, please use the 2012 HUD Income Limits, FMR Rent, Electricity and Gas Allowance. 
 
Q: With respect to the market comparables, if we are using the LAMP program where the 
rents are kept at less than 60% AMI level, do we still have to provide market comparables?  
A: Yes, market comparables must be provided.   
 
Q: Can we provide HUD limits in lieu of market comparables if there’s no low income 
housing within the vicinity of the location? 
A: We are asking for market comparables because we would like to see the feasibility of the rents 
being proposed.  Please provide a rationale and evidence as to why the proposed rents are 
feasible.   
 
Q: Can you clarify the comment on 1st Loan Reduction (H28) on Form F Rental Pro Forma 
under Tab Mort? 
A: The senior debt must be sized based on the most restrictive of all applicable minimum income 
to expense and debt service coverage ratios, as prescribed by the applicable funding program 
term sheets as well as the terms outlined in any financing partners’ letters of interest.  Therefore, 
if the project meets the minimum debt service coverage ratio but not the minimum income to 
expense ratio, the debt must be reduced to the extent that it meets the more restrictive standard 
(in this example, the income to expense ratio), and in doing so it would therefore meet both 
minimum ratios.   
 
 
 



 
 
Design/Zoning 
 
Q: What is the zoning for this Site? 
A: This Site is located in MX-8 (M1-2/R6) and is mapped within the Upland Inclusionary Housing 
District.  We encourage everyone to read both sections in the Zoning Resolution, regarding 
Mixed-Use Districts and Inclusionary Housing Districts.   
 
Q: Is the zoning strict?   
A: Yes, the zoning is strict.   
 
Q: Can we get any variances? 
A: No, you may not assume any variances for this development. 
 
Q: Will you consider proposals to upzone the residential designation of the site to R7 as 
an alternate to the as-of-right proposal? 
A: No, we will not consider proposals to upzone the residential designation as an alternate to the 
as-of-right proposal. 
 
Q: In your internal analysis of the site, did you determine whether or not South 5th Street 
counted as a “wide street” per the definition in the zoning resolution?   
A: Yes, South 5th Street is counted as a “wide street” per the definition of the zoning resolution.   
 
Q: Is open space required for Lot 41?  Does it have to be at grade level? 
A: Yes, the open space is required for Lot 41.  This is a requirement from the 2005 Greenpoint-
Williamsburg Points of Agreement.  As long as the open space complies with zoning, it is 
acceptable.  We did envision open space at grade level. 
 
Q: Can we alter the HPD Design guidelines and create smaller bedrooms?   
A: No, you must meet minimum HPD design guidelines. 
 
Q: Can we waive the parking requirements? 
A: Proposal must comply with all applicable zoning requirements.   
 
Q: If our proposal is for non-profit senior housing, how applicable is it to require 50% two–
bedroom units (which typically is only studios and one-bedrooms)?   
A: All proposals must conform with the guidelines in the RFP.  Proposals must provide that at 
least 50% of the housing units be 2-bedrooms or larger, consistent with HPD’s design guidelines. 
 
 
Finance/Program 
 
Q: What is the required minimum equity and private financing?  What is the required 
minimum from HPD and HDC?   
A: There is no minimum equity that needs to be provided by the developer.  To learn more about 
HPD and HDC programs, please review the term sheets found on HPD (www.nyc.gov.hpd) and 
HDC’s (www.nychdc.com) websites.   
 
Q: What tax abatements can I use? 
A: Refer to Section III, Part I Real Property Taxes in the RFP and/or the Tax Incentives Programs 
page on HPD’s website to learn more about tax incentives and tax abatements that may be 
available.   
 
 
 



Q: What happens if our financial proposal falls through?   
A: At a minimum, you must provide an as-of-right, non-competitive financing scenario.  You may 
provide alternate scenarios using competitive sources in your proposal, in addition to your as-of-
right scenario.  We understand that budgets may change, but want to ensure that there is a back-
up scenario so that proposals do not fall through.     
 
Q: Can I finance the commercial portion separately? 
A: Yes, we are open to that.  If separate financing is proposed, please explain in detail how it will 
relate to the overall financing.   
 
Q: When we apply for tax credits, can we get any waivers and extensions? 
A: The Developer must comply with all deadlines and requirements in the Qualified Allocation 
Plan (QAP) found on HPD’s website.   
 
Q: Can we use municipal bonds and tax credits?   
A: Yes, the assumptions must be realistic and comply with QAP requirements.   
 
Q: What’s required for Letters of Interest? 
A: If private financing is proposed, a letter or letters of interest from a private lender or lenders 
must be included.  Letters must be dated no earlier than two (2) months from the date of 
submission of the Developer’s proposal.  Please refer to Section V, H, Tab G for more 
information.  Letters of Interest are not required for HPD, HDC, or HDC bond financing.  A Letter 
of Interest is needed for State funding sources.   
 
Q: Is construction bonding required?  
A: HPD requires that the general contractor secures projects by a letter of credit for 10% of hard 
costs excluding contingency. Payment and Performance bond for 100% of hard costs may be 
accepted in lieu of letter of credit. 
 
Q: Is Section 3 required? 
A: The funding program, not the development requires Section3 compliance.  If the development 
uses a funding source that requires Section 3 compliance, then it may be subject to this 
requirement. 
 
Q: Is prevailing wage required? 
A: If you use a funding source that requires prevailing wage, such as HOME funds, then yes, 
prevailing wage is required. Prevailing wage is not determined by the project, but by the funding 
source.  
 
Q: What are the terms of the enforcement mortgage?   
A: The terms of the enforcement mortgage have not been determined yet.  The RFP requires that 
the minimum affordability term be 60 years.  Preference will be given to Proposals with 
affordability terms beyond 60 years. 
 
Q: How do we determine the value and costs of the project? 
A: The Development Team must determine the assumptions in the costs of the project when 
developing their pro forma.   
 
Q: What type of housing will this be: co-op, condo, or rental? 
A: This will be a rental development. 
 
Q: Why is the affordability level up to 80% AMI?  Can we go higher?   
A: No, all units must be affordable to households earning up to 80% AMI, as adjusted by 
household size.  Preference will be given to Proposals with a wider range in affordability with 
multiple tiers.  The affordability level is based on a feasibility analysis and discussions with the 
Community Board and the local Councilmember.   



 
Q: What percentage of the units needs to be affordable?  
A: 100% of the units need to be affordable. 
 
Q: Who will conduct an appraisal? 
A: We will require an independent appraisal from the selected Developer.   
 
 
Community Input 
 
Q: What are the community’s desires?  Have you been meeting with them?  Can we have 
access to the minutes your meetings with the Community Board? 
A: Throughout the Fall/Winter 2011-2012, HPD staff met, briefed and received feedback from the 
Land Use Committee of Community Board 1 regarding the land use for the Site.  This feedback 
played an integral part in shaping the development program of this RFP.  For example, bars or 
restaurants are not permitted in the ground floor space.  This is a result of discussions with the 
Community Board.  We do not have minutes from our meetings. 
 
Q: Did the Community Board ask for special needs housing?   
A: No, the Community Board did not ask for special needs housing and this was not discussed 
with the Community Board. 
 
 
Site History 
 
Q: How old is the building? 
A: According to historic Sanborn maps, the building was built in 1938.  The Landmarks 
Preservation Commission (LPC) took over the building to use as a warehouse to store 
architectural salvages in 1983.   
 
Q: What was stored in the warehouse? 
A: From 1983 to 2000, the Landmarks Preservation Commission stored architectural salvages, 
such as benches and fixtures.   
 
Q: Who is the owner of the property? 
A: The City of New York is the owner of the property.  The property will be disposed to the 
selected Developer through the ULURP process.   
 
 
Environmental Testing 
 
Q: Has there been any environmental testing? 
A: Further testing will be needed as a Phase 1 study has not been conducted.  It will be the 
selected Developer’s responsibility to provide a Phase 1 study, among other potential 
environmental documentation referenced in the RFP.   
 
An Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) was conducted for the Greenpoint-Williamsburg 
rezoning in 2005.  To find out more information about the area of the development site, please 
refer to the EIS on City Planning’s website: 
http://www.nyc.gov/html/dcp/html/greenpointwill/eis.shtml    
 
Some examples of environmental concerns may include:  

1) Noise attenuation since the Site is located next to the Williamsburg Bridge.  
2) An ‘E’ designation on Lot 41 due to a suspect tank.   

 



The Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) conducted an air quality and dust sampling test.  
All documents from this testing are in Attachment C in this Addendum. 
 
Q: Is there asbestos in the building? 
A: Please see Attachment C in this addendum for air quality and dust sampling tests.  Other than 
what is in those reports, there is no record of asbestos testing being done, or a record of whether 
or not the building may contain asbestos.    
 
Q: Has there been any soil testing?   
A: Since LPC took over jurisdiction of the building, there is no record of any subsurface soil 
testing that occurred.   
 
 
Commercial/Community Facility Use 
 
Q: Can I propose a garage as a commercial use?   
A: Yes, a garage may be proposed.  That would be a private commercial use.   
 
Q: Is there a preference given to either a commercial use or a community facility use?   
A:  There is no preference.  The use must be viable, feasible, and add value to the neighborhood.  
 
 
Marketing 
Q: What is the Community Board preference for marketing? 
A: The project will follow the HPD-HDC Marketing Guidelines that include a Community Board 
preference for 50% of the units. 
 
 
Security 
Q: Are there security and Information technology (IT) requirements? 
A: We want a safe building, but there are no specific security and IT requirements for this 
development. 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT B - Contact Information

LPC Warehouse RFP Pre-Submission Conference Attendees List
Wednesday, June 20th 
10:00 AM - 12:00 PM
Room 1-R

Name Title Organization Address Phone Email
Share Contact 
Information?

Joe Hoffman Proj. Dev. AFG Group, Inc. (WBE) 450 Seventh Ave, NYC 609-760-0446 jhoffman@afgcm.com Yes
Ira Mitchneck Sr. Associate Dattner Architects 1385 Broadway, NY, NY 212-247-2660 imitchneck@dattner.com Yes
Paul Kress Asst. VP, Strategic Initiatives Volunteers of America, Greater N340 West 8th Street, New York NY 10024 - pkress@voa.gny.org Yes

Guilio Cianci VP Fratello Construction 134 Milbar Blvd, Farmingdale, NY 631-414-7171
gcefratelloconstruction.com; 
scefratelloconstruciton.com Yes

Sandy Rozario Director, Development Los Sures 213 South 4th Street, Brooklyn 718-387-3600 srozario@lossures.org Yes
Michele Franzina Principal FPA Architecture - - franzina@michelefranzina.it Yes
Bridget Bonaparte Contractor Azone Comfort Air 140 DeKruif Pl, Bronx, NY 10475 646-765-2113 azonecomfortair@yahoo.com Yes
Jeremy Scherr - GoldenLioness Corp 32 Court Street, Brooklyn 718-834-9663 jeremy@mgoradev.com Yes
Magnus Magnusson Arch. MAP 853, NYC 212-252-7820 mmagnusson@maparchitects.com Yes
Jonathan Kirschenfeld Principal JKA 45 E. 20 212-219-9931 jonathan@kirscharch.com Yes
James McCullar Principal James McCullar Architecture 44 W. 28th New York, NY 10001 212-206-6622 jmccullar@jamesmccullar.com Yes
Rebecca Reich Consultatn Los Sures 211-213 S. 4th Street, Brooklyn 917-887-0275 rebandy@earthlink.net Yes
Jian (James) Du CEO Vinoleo Solution & Services 28-25 Parson Blvd, Flushing NY 917-582-3670 jamesdu@vinoleoinc.com Yes
Joseph Pupello Development El Puente 95 Broad St, NY 10004 212-920-1624 jpupello@gmail.com Yes
Ed Hakimian President Philco Builders 9 Hicks Lane, Great Neck, NY 11024 718-404-8809 edhakimian@yahoo.com Yes
Rodney Alberts Principal Rossrock LLC 150 E. 52nd Street, New York, NY 10022 212-888-2720 mralberts@rossrock.com Yes
Jonathan Williams Development Mega Contracting 22-60 46th Street, Astoria, NY 718-932-6342 jwilliams@megacontracting.com Yes
Dan Heyden Principal Design and Architects 508 W 26th Street, NY NY 10001 212-255-5056 dan@designaidd.com Yes
Matt Bremer Principal Architecture in Formation 526 West 26th Street, NYC 212-714-1006 matt@aifny.com Yes
Matt Gross Director of Development Lettire 334 110th Street, NY NY 10029 212-996-6640 mgross@lettire.com Yes
Robert M General Contracting American Dream Infinity 120 26th Street, Rockaway 718-290-7387 frobertsmis1@yahoo.com Yes



ATTACHMENT C – Environmental Documents – Enclosed are environmental 
documents from the Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) that tested the 
quantity of lead in the air and in the dust. 
 



Landmarks Preservation Warehouse                                               

337 Berry St, Brooklyn                                                                 

COSH Re‐visit July 6, 2011 

On July 6, 2011 at the request of Law Department Senior Counsel Chris Reo, COSH 

research scientist Andrew Prashad and director Sylvia Pryce performed a follow‐up walkthrough 

of the Landmark Preservation Commission (LPC) warehouse located at 337 Berry Street, 

Brooklyn.  We were accompanied by LPC deputy counsel John Weiss and special assistant to the 

executive director Megan Schmitt.  On September 25, 2008 we had performed a safety and 

health walkthrough and identified several safety and health issues that included rodents, 

leaks/mold, toxic substances, fire safety, security, general safety and lead‐based paint (LBP).  

Based upon our observations at that time, we concluded that the LPC warehouse did not 

support City employee use or occupancy. 

  Since our 2008 visit, the warehouse and its contents were cleaned and debris removed.  

We observed that rat droppings which were abundant throughout were no longer evident.  It 

appears that leaks still exist in the front section of the warehouse, as we observed water on the 

floor; however we saw no evidence of mold.  The toxic substances we saw previously had been 

removed.  Collections of artifacts were organized in sections with ample room for traversing 

between aisles.  Tripping and sharp protrusion hazards were practically non‐existent.  We were 

told that the LBP‐coated artifacts (doors, window frames, moldings, cast iron structures) had 

been power‐washed to remove loose paint; this appeared to have been effective.  The post‐

cleaning lead sampling results (air and wipe) were provided to us for review, with all clearance 

results within acceptable limits.  We also saw a few old fire boxes, which may contain mercury, 

placed separately in a bin. 

  Based upon our observations, COSH concludes that the LPC warehouse is now safe to 

accommodate staff and potential purchasers to view the items.  We would like to emphasize 

that the wood doors, window frames, moldings, and cast iron structures should all get the lead‐

based paint notice for potential buyers.  In addition, we recommend a disclosure statement for 

the fire alarm boxes that may contain mercury. 

Thank you. 
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